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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica (PSOJ) was established in 1976. It is a national organisation of private
sector associations, companies and individuals working together to promote a competitive and productive
private sector.

The organisation seeks to influence national policy issues of a political, social, or economic nature. The Executive
Committee, under guidance from the Council, leads this process by promoting discussions with the country’s
government, political directorate and the opposition. The Organisation is also in close and constant contact
with the major multi-lateral and bi-lateral agencies.

Our Vision

We are the unifying voice of the private sector working in partnership with the public sector and civil society to
achieve the 2030 Vision for Jamaica.

To effectively advocate for the implementation of public policy that enables strong sustainable private sector
led economic growth and development.
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Notice of the &7 " Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN:
That the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Members of The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica (PSOJ)
will be held at the Knutsford Court Hotel (Grand Caribbean Suite), 16 Chelsea Avenue, Kingston 10 on Thursday,
December 3, 2015 commencing at 4:00 p.m., for the purposes of considering and if thought fit, passing the
following resolutions, namely:

1. “That, in keeping with the provisions of Article 7 of the Articles of Association, this meeting will be deemed
to be the 27th Annual General Meeting of the PSOJ;”

2. Thatthe Reports of the President, the Executive Committee and the Auditors as well as the Audited Financial
Statements of Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2014 be and are hereby adopted.

3. In accordance with Article lll, Clause 4 of the Organisation’s Articles of Association, the following Members
of Council retire by rotation, and being eligible offer themselves for reelection:

Corporate Associations
1. Columbus Communications Jamaica Limited (FLOW) 1. Insurance Association of Jamaica

2. The Gleaner Company (Media) Limited 2. Jamaica Bankers Association

3. ICD Group Limited 3. Jamaica Employers Federation

4. J. Wray & Nephew Limited 4. Jamaica Exporters Association

5. Jamaica Broilers Group Limited 5. Jamaica Hotel & Tourist Association

6. Jamaica National Building Society Limited 6. Jamaica Securities Dealers Association

7. LIME 7. Jamaica Used Car Dealers Association

8. National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited 8. Realtors Association of Jamaica

9. Pan Jamaican Investment Trust Limited 9. Shipping Association of Jamaica

10. Victoria Mutual Building Society 10. Small Business Association of Jamaica
Individuals 1. Spirits Pool Association Limited

1 Elon Beckford 12. Young Entrepreneurs Association of Jamaica
5 Maureen Webber 13. Business Processes Industry Association of Jamaica

3 e s 14. Jamaica Insurance Brokers Association

4. “That such number, as required by the Articles of Association, of persons, duly nominated by the members,
being able and willing to serve, be hereby elected as members of the Council ”

5. “That the Executive Committee is authorized to issue a request for proposal for audit services, select and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.”
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Notice of the 27 " Annual General Meeting

6. To consider any other business that may appropriately be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE COUNCIL

M

Gail Moss-Solomon
HONORARY SECRETARY

October 8, 2015

39 Hope Road
Kingston 10

Members who shall be an organisation or a group of two or more individuals, companies, firms, establishments
or bodies shall at least seventy-two hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting, that is,
by 4.00 p.m. on Monday, November 30, 2015, give to the Honorary Secretary or other person acting on her
behalf for this purpose written notice of the name and address of one person who shall have been nominated
to attend the meeting on the member’s behalf, and such person shall have the voting rights and any other rights
and privileges of the member he represents. There shall be no attendance or voting by proxy at any meeting
of The PSOJ.

Nominations for Members of Council, who must be members of the Organisation in good standing, must be
made by a member of the Organisation in good standing and seconded by a member of the Organisation in good
standing, signed by the proposer and seconder and delivered to the Honorary Secretary of the Organisation at
least fourteen days prior to the date of the meeting, that is, by 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, November 18, 2015.

List of Members Serving a Second Year on Council:

Corporate:

1. Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited (The) 6. Jamaica Producers Group Limited

2. Citigroup 7. Jamaica Public Service Company Limited
3. Continental Baking Company Limited 8. Musson Jamaica Limited

4. GraceKennedy Ltd 9. Sagicor Group Jamaica Limited

5. Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited 10. WISYNCO Group Limited

B e s



Associations:
Council for Voluntary Social Services
Incorporated Masterbuilders’ Association of Jamaica
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica
Institute of Internal Auditors

. Jamaica Customer Service Association
Jamaica Developers Association
Medical Association of Jamaica
MSME Alliance
10. Sugar Manufacturing Corporation of Jamaica
11. Women Business Owners Jamaica Limited

1.
2
3
4
5. Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League
6
7
8
9

Individuals:
1. Christopher Zacca
2. Roy Banarsee
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STATEMENT FROM

THE
PRESIDENT

OF THE PSOJ
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2014 was my final year of a second two-year term as President of the PSOJ, and it was certainly an immensely
gratifying one for me.

My second term actually began in October 2013 after our regular Annual General Meeting. | sincerely appreciate
the confidence Council Members have shown for my leadership. | also thank my officers for their unwavering
support and commitment during my tenure: Vice Presidents, Don Wehby, Richard Byles and Keith Duncan; and
Honorary Secretary, Christopher Barnes.

Going into 2014, the PSOJ continued to focus on our core areas: economic policy, advocacy, the reduction
of bureaucracy, and energy. Energy was a very active area for us, where our advocacy efforts saw several
immediate and positive results. Through the Energy Monitoring Committee, the PSOJ was strident in its calls to
the Government to properly monitor the 360 Megawatt project, and ensure proper due diligence.

We were also instrumental in getting two members, former President Joseph M Matalon, CD, and William
Mahfood named to the Electricity Sector Enterprise Team that was established to push the 381-megawatt
project and manage the procurement for new electricity generating capacity.

The Committee Reports, which can be found in this publication, outline in detail the results of our other advocacy
efforts. | am grateful to the hardworking committee members who have collectively shared their experience,
knowledge and time, and who supported my Presidency. On behalf of the entire PSOJ Membership, | would like
to thank the various committees and their respective chairpersons:

. Corporate Governance Committee — chaired by Ms. Greta Bogues

. Economic Policy Committee — chaired by Mr. Don Wehby

. Membership Committee — chaired by Mr. Christopher Reckord

. Standing Committee on National Security — chaired by Commander George Overton

In June, we saw the historic visit of IMF Managing Director Christine Lagarde to the island. Several PSOJ
Executives and | were invited to participate in some events held during her time in Jamaica. The PSOJ welcomed
the signing of the IMF agreement in 2013 because we believed it formed an important and necessary step in
our efforts to build a platform for economic growth. We continue to pledge our support and partnership in the
economic development of Jamaica, and we remain committed to fiscal prudence, structured reform and social

B e s



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 (=

protection.

Later in the year, we applauded the excellent news that Jamaica had significantly improved its ranking in the
World Bank’s Doing Business Report. Jamaica had moved up 27 places in global rankings, and is now the easiest
place to do business in the Caribbean. The World Bank also moved us from 109th globally to an amazing 12th
place in only one year, in the subcategory of Getting Credit. Our improvement comes from positive changes
in the business environment and legal frameworks that can be credited to the government’s willingness to see
through the tough reforms mandated by the IMF agreement.

While we recognize the significant strides we have made, we are also aware that the race has just started.
Businesses still face challenges with bureaucracy, transaction costs, and the legal framework as the positive
effects of legislative changes have not yet been felt.

It is critical that the country ensures that the new policies facilitate businesses, especially SMEs, because this is
the only way we can sustainably grow the economy. It is also necessary that businesses feel in a very real way
the practical implementation of the changes in the regulatory environment, so that employment can increase.

As a part of our mandate, the PSOJ seeks to influence political, social and economic policy issues. During the
year, the country faced an unprecedented health and economic challenge with the chikungunya virus that
affected thousands and had a resulting negative effect on worker productivity. We estimate that 13 million man-
hours were lost from workers staying off the job while recovering. At this estimate, economic losses would be
more than $6 billion.

Recognizing the seriousness of the situation, the PSOJ partnered with one of our valued members, the Medical
Association of Jamaica, to host a series of public fora and town hall meetings to discuss community preparedness
and the country’s role in handling the chikungunya impact.

In the midst of this, we came face-to-face with the possibility of the deadly Ebola virus arriving on our shores
when it was still wreaking havoc in sections of Africa. Aware of the enormous threat the virus posed to the
Jamaican society and economy, we supported the government’s preparation efforts to formulate an airtight
strategy to combat the possibility of the virus directly impacting us. We also helped to ensure that an appropriate
and rapid response plan was in place.

CEO Dennis Chung was a part of the Ministry of Health’s delegation to Cuba to see first-hand how they were
preparing to deal with the possible arrival of the Ebola virus. These alliances demonstrate our sincere belief that
we ultimately work in the best interest of not only the private sector, but also the entire nation.

Our advocacy and committee work is in tandem with our reputation for hosting quality, prestigious and
successful events. This continued in 2014, beginning with our bi-monthly series of breakfast meetings, known
as the President’'s Forum (formerly the Chairman’s Club Forum). The Forum addresses key issues critical to
private sector growth and development, and is one of the most sought after platforms on the PSOJ’s yearly
agenda. | must thank our long-time sponsors, LIME and NCB, for their continuous support, and our members
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who faithfully attend.

Other staple events included the Annual Economic Forum, sponsored by the JMMB Group, Columbus Business
Solutions (Flow) and GB Energy. Under the theme, Fuelling SMEs in Supporting Economic Growth, the event
featured guest speaker, JJ Geewax, American Tech Expert, Angel Investor and Google Executive. Additional
speakers included Ms. Lisa Lake, Chief Entrepreneurship Officer, Branson Centre of Entrepreneurship —
Caribbean; Mr. Michael Steele, Head of School at the Joan Duncan School of Entrepreneurship; and Mr. Edison
Galbraith, General Manager at the Development Bank of Jamaica. This Forum was in keeping with our renewed
focus during the year to provide added support and advocacy efforts for small businesses.

We also held our Annual Pensions Seminar, in conjunction with another longtime sponsor, Prime Asset
Management, under the theme, Defined Ambition Plans: The Next Innovation in Pensions.

We were extremely pleased to honour and celebrate our 22nd Awardee, Dr. The Honourable Glenford ‘Glen’
Christian, OJ, OD, JP, Chairman and CEO of Cari-Med Ltd, at the Private Sector Hall of Fame, our biggest and
most prestigious event for the year. Dr. Christian is a major player in Jamaica’s pharmaceutical and consumer
industry, and is credited as one of the first to provide affordable pharmaceuticals to the Jamaican market. This
homegrown entrepreneur’s story is one of hard work, determination and vision. We thank him sincerely for his
significant contributions, not only to the pharmaceutical industry, but the wider Jamaican private sector.

None of our events would be possible without the support of our sponsors, many of whom have been with us
for years. To all of them, | extend my sincere gratitude. A comprehensive list of these sponsors is published in
this Report.

Our events would not have gained the positive reputation they now enjoy without the steadfast and enthusiastic
support of our members. The PSOJ seeks to provide value to its members, and it is my hope that these events
will continue to do just that.

| pause here to recognize the dedicated and hardworking staff at the PSOJ Secretariat, led by CEO Dennis
Chung. Without them much of the work of the PSOJ would not be possible. As always, the team went above
and beyond the call of duty to satisfy the needs of members and provide service excellence. They made my
tenure at the PSOJ enjoyable, and words cannot express my gratitude and admiration for the work they have
done both for the organization and for me.

Ladies and gentlemen, this second tenure as PSOJ President has been a very enlightening, complex, and
rewarding for me. Among the more pleasant highlights | include:

. Honouring the surviving founding fathers of the PSOJ

. Inducting into the Hall of Fame three outstanding Jamaican business leaders: Mrs. Lorna Myers (first
female inductee), Mr. Tony Hart (first inductee from western Jamaica), and Dr. The Honourable Glen
Christian

. The MSME Alliance that represents the smallest businesses joining the PSOJ
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. The work the private sector did in partnership with the public sector in developing the omnibus tax
incentives and GCT reform as it affects manufacturers
. My signing the Partnership for Jamaica Agreement on behalf of the private sector.

Now that my time as PSOJ President has come to an end, | am confident | leave the PSOJ an even stronger
and more vibrant organization, with a reputation for being credible and reliable, but fair and balanced in all our
dealings. At the end of 2014, | seamlessly handed over the Presidency to William Mahfood, a man of integrity
and credibility, with years of service both as a business leader and as a philanthropist. He is someone whom
| know is committed to the positive growth and development of the private sector. With him at the helm, I'm
certain the PSOJ will be in very capable hands.

I look forward to seeing the PSOJ continue to be the unifying voice of the private sector, working in partnership
with the public sector and civil society to achieve the 2030 Vision for Jamaica.

Christopher Zacca, CD, JP
PRESIDENT, PSOJ
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PSOJ Council Members

The PSOJ is governed by a 50-member council which is elected by the general membership to serve for a two (2) year period. As the governing

body, the council sets the Organisation’s policies and elects each year from amongst its members the Executive Committee.

Council Members elected at AGM held Thursday, December 4, 2014

Corporate Associations Individuals
Rank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited (The) Council for Voluntary Social Services Christopher Zacca
Citigroup Incorporated Masterbuilders' Association of Jamaica Roy Banarsee
Continental Baking Company Limited Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica
GraceKennedy Limited Institute of Internal Auditors
Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League
Jamaica Producers Group Limited Jamaica Customer Service Association
Jamaica Public Service Company Limited Jamaica Developers Association
Musson Jamaica Limited Medical Association of Jamaica
Sagicor Group Jamaica Limited MSME Alliance
WISYNCO Group Limited Sugar Manufacturing Corporation of Jamaica
L Women Business Owners Jamaica Limited )

Council Members elected at the 25th Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, September 12, 2013

and serving a second year in 2014/2015

Corporate Associations Individuals
Columbus Communications Jamaica Limited (FLOW) | Insurance Association of Jamaica Christopher Zacca
The Gleaner Company (Media) Limited Jamaica Bankers Association Roy Banarsee
ICD Group Limited Jamaica Employers Federation
J. Wray & Nephew Limited Jamaica Exporters Association
Jamaica Broilers Group Limited Jamaica Hotel & Tourist Association
Jamaica National Building Society Limited Jamaica Securities Dealers Association
KLIME Jamaica lsed Car Dealers Association y
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Council Members Elected at the 25th Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, September 12, 2013

and serving a second year in 2014/2015 cont’d

Corporate

Associations

Individuals

National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited

Realtors Association of Jamaica

Elon Beckford

Pan Jamaican Investment Trust Limited

Shipping Association of Jamaica

Maureen Webber

Victaria Mutual Building Society

Small Business Association of Jamaica

Charles Ross

Spirits Pool Association Limited

Young Entrepreneurs Association of Jamaica

Business Processes Industry Association of Jamaica

Jamaica Insurance Brokers Association
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More decision makers read @he Gleaner
than any other newspaper in Jamaica.

For more information
or to book your advertising place, contact:

The Gleaner Company Limited
Advertising Department

7 North Street, Kingston

Tele: 932-6141/6151

Email: Advertising@gleanerjm.com

© @jamaicagleaner
@ facebook comigleanerjamaica
@ @jamaicagleaner

The Gleaner Company Limited
www.jamaica-gleaner.com



The PSOJ Corporate Governance (CG) Committee
had another active year with membership changes.
On her resignation as LIME’s Corporate Secretary,
Mrs .Kamina Johnson-Smith was replaced as LIME
Mrs.
Andrea Lewin-Brown and Mr. Robert Hamilton were
included as the FSC representatives.

representative by Miss Rochelle Cameron.

The PSOJ Corporate Governance Code Volumes 1
& 2, 2009, was revised and additionally a new code
is being developed for the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise (MSME’s). These sub-committees were
led by Mrs. Suzanne Goldson and Mr. Garth Kiddoe,
respectively.

During the year, the committee had regular meetings
and sub-committees met two to three times per
month. A well-attended committee retreat for the
main Corporate Governance code was held Saturday
December 6, 2014. Members reviewed the document
and made changes on research. They also offered
suggestions and commented on various aspects of
the code.

In line with the PSOJ’s corporate strategic scorecard,
the committee participated in and facilitated the
following activities:

SR o sl
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- Committee members continued to play a pivotal role
in training Directors and using the Global Corporate
Governance Forum’s Resource Kit. CG training
proposals were also sent to several private and public

sector entities, but none materialised.

- The Corporate Governance Framework for Public
Bodies. The CG Committee continues to support
the Ministry of Finance and Planning’s sensitisation
programmes for public sector directors, and has been
providing technical assistance required by the public
sector implementation team. In 2015, the PSOJ will
collaborate with the Ministry of Finance & Planning
to establish a PSOJ award to recognise outstanding
corporate governance in public sector entities.

- In November 2013, the Deputy Financial Secretary
of the Ministry of Finance & Planning, Mrs. Ann-Marie
Rhoden, met with the CG Committee and updated
members on the roll out of the public sector CG
education programme. From these discussions, the
PSOJ agreed to the following:

- To establish a database of personnel trained as
directors that would be shared with the government
for selecting directors

- Help the public sector develop a Directors’
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compensation model.

« In 2011, the Jamaica Stock Exchange introduced
a new rule 414, on guidelines. Among other things,
this rule requires companies to disclose their CG
guidelines. But the committee raised concerns about
the implementation being voluntary. The PSOJ wrote
the JSE recommending that this rule be mandatory
and that breaches should attract appropriate fines.

- For the sixth year in a row the PSOJ sponsored the
PSOJ/Jamaica Stock Exchange CG Award.

- The Development Bank of Jamaica approved
funding for the committee to support CG training for
SMEs during 2015.

« A report to UNCTAD
governance disclosure in Jamaica has not yet been

in 2012 on corporate

finalised by Syntegra Change Architects of Trinidad
& Tobago.

- Our current economic climate presents another
opportunity for the committee to build awareness

and train prospective and new Directors in corporate
governance best practices for all newly appointed
public and private sector boards.

In 2015, the Committee will continue to actively monitor
and advocate good corporate governance practices
for both the public and the private sector, and Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME) entities, to
ensure greater transparency and accountability in the
way business is conducted.

Corporate Governance Index: The committee is also
collaborating with the JSE to implement a joint PSOJ/
JSE CG Index, developed by Mr. Howard Haughton.
This is an integral part of the awareness of corporate
governance for directors and the general public, and
they are currently awaiting funding to proceed with
the project.

Corporate Governance Programme: A corporate
governance programme is currently being developed

to train persons to be prospective directors, using the
main CG code along with international best practices
as guidelines.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Greta Bogues (Chairman)
J. WRAY & NEPHEW LTD.

Garth Kiddoe

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

Gina Phillips-Black
MYERS, FLETCHER & GORDON

Dennis Chung Robert Hamilton David Hall

PS0J FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS
Alastair Macbeath Andrea Lewin-Brown Patrick McDonald
MONDIAL FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION HART, MUIRHEAD, FATTA

Suzanne Fflokes-Goldson

Kamina Johnson-Smith

uwi LIME (RESIGNED)

Tracy Campbell Rochelle Cameron
PRICEWATERHOUSE COOPERS LIME

Howard Haughton Christopher Bovell
HOLISTIC RISK SOLUTIONS LIMITED DUNNCOX
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ECONOMIC POLICY

o

Meetings

The committee met for ten monthly meetings during
2014. One was cancelled due to the lack of a quorum.
Attendance at meetings averaged approximately
70% of EPC membership.

Work of the EPC

In 2014, the EPC focused on Public Sector Reform,
Tax Reform and Strategies for Economic Growth.
The EPC looked at improving the efficiency of the
tax system, reducing public sector bureaucracy,
and improving public-private partnerships (PPP). In
addition to developing key policy documents, the
EPC held a successful Annual Economic Forum
in collaboration with its usual partner, the Jamaica
Money Market Brokers (JMMB) Group.

To facilitate development of the policy frameworks,
the EPC invited external presentations from Mr.
Richard Byles (Co-Chair, Economic Programme
Oversight Committee), who spoke about the IMF
programme, and Mr. Rez Burcheson (General
Manager, Prime Asset Management Ltd.), who spoke
about phase two of the Pensions Reform Act.

New Members

No new memberswere addedtothe EPCin 2014. The
Chairman, noted, however, that Ms. Angela Fletcher,
Vice President of Treasury and Trade Services at

.\
Citibank Jamaica, will join the committee in January
2015. Mr. Randell Berry joined the PSOJ in February
2014 following the resignation of Ms. Dena Spence;
his main responsibilities include management of the
EPC and Economic Research.

Economic Policy Research

The EPC produced two key pieces of research in
2014, including one on reform of the public services.
This paper formed the basis for a meeting with Mrs.
Patricia Francis from the Office of the Prime Minister.
The meeting was well attended by other key players
from the OPM; they found the paper interesting
and noted that the government will work with the
PSOJ to have elements of the recommendations
implemented.

The key recommendation from the research was
that the government should implement a system
of performance based remuneration for the public
services. It was also agreed that Mrs. Francis would
visit the PSOJ Secretariat in early 2015 to make a
presentation on government measures to reform
the public services. The second paper on economic
growth strategies was not completed and will be
presented in 2015.
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Annual Economic Forum

The PSOJ/JMMB Annual Economic Forum was held
on July 3, 2014. The theme was “Fuelling SMEs in
Supporting Economic Development” and this was
motivated by the desire to foster higher levels of
economic growth. The main speaker was Mr. J.J.
Geewax, an Angel Investor and Google Executive,
whose SME, Invite Media, was purchased by Google
back in 2010.

Other speakers were Mr. Stephen Steel (CEQ, iPrint
Digital), Mrs. Lisa Lake (Chief Entrepreneurial Officer
- Branson Centre of Entrepreneurship — Caribbean),
Mr. Michael Steele (Head of School, Joan Duncan
School of Entrepreneurship), Mr. Jenson Sylvester
(Director, Government and Strategic Account,
Columbus Business Solutions) and Mr. Edison

Galbraith (General Manager, DBJ).

Economic Bulletin

The PSOJ published 12 monthly issues of the
Economic Bulletin in 2014. Many members and non-
members praised improvements in the monthly
economic bulletin. In the past year, the PSOJ has
made a conscious effort to raise the standard of
the content and analysis of this monthly publication.
The organization has also promised to seek further
improvements in 2015.

Three new sections will be created: an inflation
forecast; stock market analysis broken down by
sectors; and a monthly economic activity index.
In addition, the bulletin continues to attract new
advertisements; this is expected to continue in 2015.

MEMBERSHIP DEC 2012 - PRESENT

Don Wehby
EPC CHAIRMAN, GRACE KENNEDY GROUP

William Mahfood-PSOJ

Dennis Chung-PSOJ

PROF. Densil Williams
MONA SCHOOL OF BUSINESS & MANAGEMENT

Dr. Andre Haughton
MONASCHOOL OF BUSINESS & MANAGEMENT

Dr. Adrian Stokes
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA JAMAICALTD (THE)

Jermaine Burrell
JMMB

Christopher Barnes
THE GLEANER COMPANY (MEDIA) LIMITED

Keith Collister
SANDALS GROUP

Brian Denning
PWC

Jason Morris
SCOTIA INVESTMENTS

Randell Berry
PS0J
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My Financial Independence means ...

l\av'mg mugl\ sa,vwf 1o cover
my famify s needs.

SET GOALS | CREATE A PLAN | TRACK PROGRESS
I'm building my Financial Independence with

VicToriA MuTuaL

Savings & Mortgages | Wealth Management | Pension Fund Management | Building Your Financial Independence
Real Estate Services | Money Transfers | General Insurance

876.754.8627 | www.vmbs.com
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In 2014, there was a 24% dip in tips received (582) compared to 2013 (773). The majority of tips related to illegal electricity connections and
illegal firearms and drugs. Investigations into the 515 “first” calls led to 78 successes in 2014. These included arrests as well as recoveries of
stolen property, illegal firearms and illegal narcotics.

"CRIME STOP"

CALLS RECEIVED - 2014
ST/M/VEHICLE . TOTAL - 582

ILL. FIREARM CHILD NEED CARE
e A WANTEDMEN 2%
LoTTo ™ 7% e
ez N ~ r QUERIES/ADD.INFO
GUNS/DRUGS ___ = 10% _ susp/acTIVITIES
1% - e
T OTHER %
ILL/ACTIVITIES _ 10%
a MURDER - sr/rng:znrv
4% FRAUD
1%
CRIME OF MONTH _—
2% GUNME
“_ DRUGS
10%

Arrests made from information received by Crime Stop Jamaica improved slightly - moving from 42 in 2013
to 53 in 2014. Arrests connected with illegal electricity connections were 30% of all arrests made. Arrests in
connection with illegal drugs were 26%.

PROPERTY - Twelve illegal firearms were seized during the year. Of these, eight were pistols, one was a
revolver and three were homemade firearms. Sixty-one rounds of ammunition were also taken off the streets
through information received.

Four stolen motor vehicles were recovered through Crime Stop information in 2014, along with a large quantity
of stolen motor vehicle spare parts, irrigation pipes, wiring, buckets and black oil.
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The value of the property recovered/seized during 2014 totaled $5,447,400.

NARCOTICS - In 2014, Crime Stop information led to the seizure/destruction of $12.6M worth of drugs — 47.25
kgs of cured ganja, 2.452 hectares of ganja plants and 8,000 ganja seedlings.

REWARDS - Thirty-eight rewards were paid out totaling $1,694,470.

GUARDSMANY/SIGNTEX/CRIME STOP INITIATIVE - In December 2014, Guardsman hosted the launch of 60
mini billboards erected island wide. This partnership is between Guardsman, who paid for the production of the
billboards, Signtex, who provide the locations free of cost, and Crime Stop.

JPSCo/CRIME STOP PARTNERSHIP - In June 2014, Crime Stop signed an agreement with the JPSCo, agreeing
to take information from the public on those stealing electricity to conduct their business. In six months, 109
calls were received, leading to 16 persons being arrested for stealing electricity. An additional 21 businesses
were warned about prosecution.

FUND RAISING FILM PREMIERE - Crime Stop held its first fund raising film premiere to raise additional monies
to run the programme. The premiere of the Amazing Spiderman was held 29th April, making a profit of $150,000.
Crime Stop learned several lessons from its first use of a premiere as a fund raiser.

BOARD MEMBERS -The following were members of the Board of Directors as at December, 2014:

BOARD MEMBERS

Peter John Thwaites Charles Ross - Ex-Officio Members:
CHAIRMAN TERLING ASSET MANAGEMENT .

e oA . Errol Miller
Michael Hirst SSP Michael James LIME
PRISM COMMUNICATIONS JAMAICA CONSTABULARY FORCE Belinda Williams

q NATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK

Paige Todd Jenni Campbell
TANKWELD LTD. THE GLEANER COMPANY (MEDIA) LIMITED
Dennis Chung Brian Schmidt
PS0J [RIE FM
Neville James William Mahfood
PSOJ INDIVIDUAL MEMBER WISYNCO GROUP
Maj. Gen. Robert Neish Paul Tai
DIGICEL FOUNDATION NUNES SCHOLEFIELD DELEON & CO.
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Roundtable Discussion

A Roundtable Discussion with the Minister of Justice, the Minister of National Security, the Chief Justice and the
Commissioner of Police was held on Tuesday, February 11, 2014 at the PSOJ Secretariat. All gave presentations
on the five items they individually identified as areas of concern that could significantly improve the justice
system if addressed. These presentations were the essence of the very open and frank discussion.

Four perspectives on some of the major issues within the criminal justice system were highlighted:

- Minister of Justice Mark Golding noted that the volume and demand of cases have grown far more than the
justice system can handle. He said his Ministry is aware of the importance of these issues and realizes that
trying to do too much at the same time causes insufficient impact on the final outcome.

- Minister of National Security Peter Bunting saw the prison issues and the efforts of the JCF working to support
the justice system as critical. He said he was particularly concerned with the transportation of prisoners.

- Commissioner of Police Owen Ellington highlighted his areas of concern, specifically the gathering of sufficient
evidence and the ability to present such evidence in the form needed to allow the justice system to run more
efficiently.

« The Chief Justice’s major concern was commitment and funding. The consensus from the Roundtable
Discussion with the Ministers of Justice and National Security, the Chief Justice and the Commissioner of Police,
is to increase the use of technology in the delivery of evidence and case preparedness.

Anti-Gang Legislation
After being debated at the Joint Select Committee of Parliament and approved by both Houses of Parliament,
the long awaited bill was assented by Governor General Sir Patrick Allen, on the 4th day of April 2014.

National Council on Justice
In June 2014, the Ministry of Justice invited the PSOJ to nominate a representative to the National Council on
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Justice. The Chairman of the Standing Committee on National Security and Justice, Lt. Cdr. George Overton,

was selected to represent the PSOJ. The Council has been having quarterly meetings with the aim of improving
awareness of its achievements.

Inter-American Development Bank (IADB) Presentation

Mr. Juan Pedro Schmid, Economic Specialist and Acting Country Representative from the Inter-American
Development Bank, made a presentation at the meeting of the Committee in July 2014 on the IADB’s perspective
on the importance of dealing with crime.

DNA Bill

The Ministry of National Security received a draft copy of the DNA BILL from the Office of the Chief Parliamentary
Counsel in September 2014. The Bill was being reviewed internally by the Ministry of National Security with a
view to ensuring that the Ministry’s policy and objectives are included. Thereafter, the Bill will be sent to the
Attorney General’s Chambers and the Legal Reform Department for their review and comments. The Bill will be
submitted to the Legislation Committee of Cabinet before the end of the calendar year.

New Members of the Committee

The PSOJ’s Standing Committee on National Security sought to develop a stronger justice agenda in the year
2014. This led to recruiting new members for the Committee and changing its name to Standing Committee
on National Security and Justice (SCNS&J). New members included Mr. Mark Shields from Shields Crime and
Security Consultants Limited, Mrs. Donna Parchment Brown from the Ministry of Justice and Captain Paul Beswick
from the Jamaican Bar Association. The appointment of Col. Desmond Edwards as head of the Major Organised
Crime and Anti-Corruption Agency (MOCA) in August 2014 led to the JDF appointing a new representative, Lt.
Col. David Cummings, to sit on the Committee. Dr. Carl Williams, who was appointed Commissioner of Police in
September 2014, automatically became a member of the Committee. He nominated ACP Assan Thompson as
his representative.

Address from the Commissioner of Police

On Tuesday, November 18, 2014, Commissioner, Dr. Carl Williams, met with the Committee and participated in
the meeting. The Commissioner advised that the JCF’'s number one priority is crime prevention and reduction.
He noted that every major category of crime has been down and that for the first time in 11 years, the JCF was on
its way to recording the lowest number of murders as the year 2014 came to a close. The Commissioner shared
his vision, which is to “transform the Police Force from what it is, to a truly professional Force, where citizens will
respect and look up to the Police.” Arising from the Commissioner’s address was the need for a proper public
relations mechanism. It was decided that the PSOJ would help the JCF develop strategies that would promote
the ‘good news’ coming from the JCF.

Anti-Corruption Legislation

In October 2014, meetings were held with the former Contractor General, Mr. Greg Christie, the current
Contractor General, Mr. Dirk Harrison, and Mr. Trevor Monroe, Executive Director of National Integrity Action
(NIA) to discuss the proposed Anti-Corruption Legislation. It informed the PSOJ’s view on the Bill and guided
the organisation on its submission to this Act in Parliament.
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JCF Highlights

At the close of 2014, the Standing Committee on National Security and Justice (SCNS&J) sent a letter to the
Commissioner of Police conveying the PSOJ’s commendation of the Jamaica Constabulary Force for their hard
work and dedication that resulted in a 16% reduction in major crimes and police shootings.

BOARD MEMBERS

Lt. Commander George Overton Professor Anthony Harriott
CHAIRMAN - SCNS&J, uwi

GUARDSMAN GROUP LIMITED Michael Bernard

Peter John Thwaites SHIPPING SERVICES STEVEDORING
CME Maria Williams

Major General (Retired) Robert Neish B L TED

CHAIRMAN- CRIME STOP Michele Lemmon

. ] MINISTRY OF NATIONAL SECURITY
Rear Admiral (Retired) Peter Brady

MARITIME AUTHORITY OF JAMAICA David Silvera
JAMAICANS FOR JUSTICE

Dr.CarlWilliams

JAMAICA CONSTABULARY FORCE Assan Thompson
JAMAICA CONSTABULARY FORCE

Ferris Ziadie .

FERRIS ZIADIE LTD Mark Shields

SHIELDS CRIME AND SECURITY CONSULTANTS LIMITED
Lieutenant Colonel DA Cummings

Donna Parchment Brown
JAMAICA DEFENCE FORCE MINISTRY OF JUSTICE
William Mahfood Capt. Paul Beswick
PS0J JAMAICAN BAR ASSOCIATION
Dennis Chung Tashoni Ellis
PSOJ PSOJ
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The Membership Committee seeks to increase membership in the PSOJ, retain existing members by creating
networking opportunities for them, and make membership benefits attractive.

Members’ Mingles

As such, the Committee continued to work with the Secretariat in staging the Members’ Mingles, the
organisation’s most successful networking activity, which begun in 2012. Mingles were held at Guardian Life’s
New Kingston Office, the Silver Star Mercedes Benz Showroom and the Trafalgar Road residence of the British
High Commissioner. The Committee instituted a policy where attendees must be PSOJ members and this
helped the event grow in scope and importance to the membership. Roughly 200 members attended each
Mingle, making them one of the organisation’s largest and most successful events.

We take this opportunity to thank our faithful sponsors: main sponsor, International Asset Services; Rainforest
Seafoods; and Jamaica Broilers. We must also thank the host companies for the year, including Guardian Life
Ltd, Silver Star Motors Ltd, and the British High Commission.

Mentorship Dinner

The Committee also continued to host its series of entrepreneurial dinner mentorship sessions, now in its fourth
year. Guest mentors included Mr. Everton Bryan; Dr. Marcia Forbes; Dr. The Honourable Glenford ‘Glen’ Christian,
OJ, OD, JP; Hon. Beverley Lopez, OJ; and Omar Azan. As is customary, the mentors fielded questions and gave
advice and guidance to over 30 entrepreneurs during the year. Spanish Court Hotel graciously sponsored and
hosted the series of Dinners for the year.

Other Membership Issues
Summary Membership Numbers:

At the beginning of 2014 there were 275 members:
« 25 Associations

. 205 Companies

« 45 Individuals
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During the year 24 new members were recruited:
« 4 associations

- 18 companies

« 2 individuals

There were six company resignations, and six resignations from individual members. Five companies, three

individuals and one association were also delisted.

The net number of members at the end of 2014 is 278:

. 28 Associations
. 212 Companies
- 38 Individuals

Thanks to all the members of the membership committee, and the team at the PSOJ who assisted with the

events.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Christopher Reckord (Chairman)
PSOJ INDIVIDUAL MEMBER

Dennis Chung
PS0J

Everton Bryan
INTERNATIONAL ASSET SERVICES

Christopher Barnes
THE GLEANER COMPANY (MEDIA) LIMITED

Karin Wilson Edmonds
INDIVIDUAL MEMBER

Donovan White
COLUMBUS BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

Anika Smith
MAYBERRY INVESTMENTS

Mariame Mcintosh Robinson
PSOJ INDIVIDUAL MEMBER

Yaneek Page
FUTURE SERVICES INTERNATIONAL

Mauricio Pulido
GB ENERGY

Kareen Cox
PS0J
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IDB/NCB PROJECT- ATN/12712-JR

The project “Institutional Strengthening of NCB

for the Expansion of Small Business Financing”, r

sought to increase financing to small enterprises

that drive economic growth. It was supported ‘ . ‘
with US$567,009.00 from NCB and a MIF

grant of US$462,000.00. NCB also created [ [ |
a J$500,000,000 special fund pool for loan ‘
financing for SMEs at an attractive interest rate.

The bank also gave SMEs access to

J$50,000,000 in private equity through the

televised reality programme NCB Capital Quest.

The PSQOJ is the legal agency executing this
project.

The project consisted of the following components: (i) Development and deployment of a Credit Scoring System,
(i) Capacity building of SMEs, including family businesses; (iii) Technical assistance for selected SME clients;
and (iv) Communication and Knowledge Management.

All milestones were completed eight months before the end of the financing period. The project ended on
a high note with the February 25, 2015 launch of the case studies, and a documentary that highlighted the
experiences of SMEs in the project and its salient themes.

Key Project Results:
« Business management principles and practices training for representatives of 100 SMEs;

Detailed training in SME management through capacity building workshops for representatives of 80 SMEs;
Technical assistance services and advice on firm- appropriate management systems for representatives of
21 SMEs;

Capital Quest launched and SMEs offered equity financing;

« 7 Case Studies produced; and

Documentary completed.
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STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dennis Cohen (chairman)
NCB

Audrey Tugwell-Henry
NCB

Marcia Reid-Grant
NCB

Nadeen Matthews
NCB

Allison Wynter
NCB

Howard Gordon
NCB

Sandra A.C. Glasgow
BIZ TACTICS LIMITED

Barrington Bryce
IDB/NCB PROJECT

Wayne Beecher
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

Erica Haughton
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

Carlene Clarke
[DB/NCB PROJECT C/0 PSOJ
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 AOMINISTRATION

- FROM LEFT T0 RIGHT: - SEATED FROM LEFT T0 RIGHT: - MISSING:

Paulette Josephs Dennis Chung Evett Evans-Coombs
HUMAN RESOURCE OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

James Sterling Andreen McKenzie Cecil Lindo

CARETAKER PROJECT ASSOCIATE CARETAKER

Tashoni Ellis
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

Winsome Millen
OFFICE ATTENDANT
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MARKETING & PUBLIC RELATIONS

- FROM LEFT T0 RIGHT

Angela Williams - CUSTOMERSERVICE REPRESENTATIVE
Kareen Cox - MARKETING & PR MANAGER

Nichocie Bryan - MARKETING OFFICER, MEMBERSHIP SERVICES
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- MISSING:
Kisha-Kay Walker - ACCOUNTING OFFICER

- FROM LEFT To RIGHT:
Carlene Clarke - SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

David Mason - MANAGER
MichelleScarlett - ACCOUNTANT
Lascelles Page - ASSISTANT IT ADMINISTRATOR

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Richard Murray - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, JBA

Roxaine Smith - ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, JBA & JSDA
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T. Geddes Grant Office Furniture, Equipment & Security Division

MANAGER'S
OFFICE

We will help you furnish your office, store

- °REC

EPTION -

and secure your data and documents.

EDDES
&

Office Furniture

T. Geddes Grant (Distributors) Ltd ,

109 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 11
Telephone: (876)9237311-9 | Fax: (876)923-7136
Email: officedivision@tgeddesgrant.com

ﬁDAMS

Chubbsafes
LG O,
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It's That Good!




.@ Gracekennedy m BillExpress ﬁwm B, RAPID > TiuiYiche.
EIRST FIRST
Eacicen BJIIC G oBAL

FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.

We've been by your side, turning dreams into reality,
transforming houses into homes and changing meals into memories.

We'll continue to deliver the quality products and services you deserve because you are the reason
we’re here.

\ 4

GraceKennedy

G R O UP
We care.
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Mercedes Benz Hosts PS0J Members’ Mingle p

President’s Forum




New Members Inducted into the PSOJ

| 35

President’s Forum with Guest Speaker Rochelle Cameron

PS0J Hall of Fame inductee Dr. The Honourable Glen
Christian with his wife, PS0J Executives and former Prime
Minister Bruce Golding and his wife Lorna
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PS0J Members’ Mingle

PS0J New Members’ Inducted




PS0J-JMMB Annual Economic Forum

PS0J President’s Forum with Guest Speaker Patrick Hylton
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Patrick Hylton & Garfield Sinclair at the PS0J President’s Forum
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Sagicor Wins Private Sector Service Excellence Awards




Christopher Zacca
Favecocll

On Thursday, December 11, 2014, the PSOJ said goodbye to President Christopher Zacca, CD, JP, who

demitted office after having served five years at the helm of the PSOJ during two separate periods. This

special luncheon was held at the Jamaica Pegasus Hotel and saw members of the government, opposition,
private sector and diplomatic corps in attendance. Below are the photographic highlights.

pecial gift
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The President with family

The President with Wife, Gillian
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Our Valuable Sponsors

We take this opportunity to thank our many sponsors who supported our
events throughout 2014.

PRESIDENT’S FORUM

LIME
National Commercial Bank Jamaica Ltd.

MEMBERS’ MINGLES

International Asset Services Ltd.
Rainforest Seafoods

Jamaica Broilers Group
Guardian Group

Silver Star Ltd

British High Commission

ANNUAL ECONOMIC FORUM

JMMB Group
Columbus Business Solutions (FLOW)
GB Energy

Prime Asset Management Ltd

HALL OF FAME BANQUET

Cari-Med Ltd

CIBC First Caribbean

Columbus Business Solutions (FLOW)
Continental Baking Company Ltd
GraceKennedy Ltd

Guardian Group

J Wray & Nephew Ltd

Herald Printers Ltd

Kirk Distributors

Scotiabank

MENTORSHIP DINNER

Spanish Court Hotel

MEMBERS’ LUNCHEON

BCIC

Citi

Digicel Business

Guardsman Group
International Asset Services Ltd
Scotiabank

WISYNCO
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EASY o

TAKE ON THE WORLD

Life just got easier with the
New and Improved Motor Max

No Fault Discount

Unlimited Windscreen

New Vehicle Replacement

Rental Benefit

Competitive Pricing

BCIC

An affiliate of VICTORIA MUTUAL

BCICJAMAICA BCICJAMAICA BCICJAMAICA

1-888-BCIC-INS (2242-467)
www.BCIConline.com
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play it now’

00, O or one number from 1 to 36
With a $10 bet you could win:

PLAY AT ALL

Supreme Ventures outlets

WATCH DRAW AT SELECT outlets

&3 VE NTURES
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KPMG P.O. Box 76

Chartered Accountants Kingston

The Victoria Mutual Building Jamaica, W.I.

6 Duke Streat Telephone +1 (876) 922-6640

Kingston Fax +1 (876) 922-7198

Jamaica, W.I. +1 (876) 922-4500
a-Mail firmmail@kpmg.com.jm

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica (“the
Organisation™), set out on pages 3 to 26, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2014, the statement of profit or loss and other of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether or not the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence relating to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG, a Jamaican partniership and & R. Tarun Handa Marman ©. Rainfoed
rmember fim of the KPMG network of Padricia 0. Dailey-Smith Mugél F. Charmbers
indegendant member fimms atfiliatad with Linreny J. Marshal V. Gihan C. de Me
KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG Cynthia L. Lawrence Myssa A Johnson
International” ), 8 Swiss entity. Fajan Trahan Wilbert A Spence
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Report on the financial statements, (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of The
Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica as at December 31, 2014, and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Jamaican Companies Act.

Report on additional matters required by the Jamaica Companies Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion, proper accounting records
have been maintained, so far as appears from our examination of those records, and the financial

statements, which are in agreement therewith, give the information required by the Jamaican
Companies Act, in the manner required.

WHl

Chartered Accountants
Kingston, Jamaica

May 1,2015
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THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2014

Notes

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3

Investmernts 4
CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts receivable and prepayments 5

Tax recoverable

Due from related parties &

Securities purchased under resale agreements 7

Cash and cash equivalents 8

Cash and cash equivalents from

special project finds 8

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY

Fair value reserve

Retained earnings
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liability 9

Special project funds 10
CURRENT LIABILITY

Accounts payable and accruals n

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The financial statements on pages 3 to 26 were approved by the

ay 1, 2015 gnd signed on its behalf by:
- o]
___ Director

William Mahfood

W/M/\ ) Dircctor

Frank Jamg

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2014 2013
$°000 $7000
15,079 9,568

1 1
15,080 9,569
7,002 4,240
3,866 1,341

658 -

15,463 15,855
8,198 6,972
4,462 13,879
35,649 42,287
54,729 2l.856

{1 { 39
37.987 28,887
37.948 28,848

1,135 765
4,462 13.879
5,597 14,544
11,184 8.364
54,729 21,856

Board of Dircetors on



THE PRIVATE SECTOR ODRGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended December 31, 20)4

MNotes
Revenue
Subscriptions and contributions
Other income, net
Administration expenscs
Operating profit
Finance income i2
Profit before 1axation i3
T'axation 6

Profit, being total comprehensive income
for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial stateinents.

201

300

= I

14,426
36,962

71,388
(57,883}

13,505
1.535

15,040

{_1.942}

13,098



THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended December 31. 2014

Fair value Retained
IeseIve eariings
57000 $°600

Balances at December 31, 2012 { 39 15,789
Profit, being total comprehensive income

for the year - 13.008

Balances at December 31, 2013 { 3% 28,887
Profit, being total comprehensive incoine

for the year - 9,100

Balances at December 31, 2014 {__ 3N 37,987

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Total
$000

15,750



TIE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014

13,008

1,494
168

{ 1,043}
1,942

15,689

2,020

2
{ 4,465)
(70

13,176
(257

12.919

{ 876
{ $,176)
960

{_8.092)

(_5.470)

2014
$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 9.100
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,726
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -
Interest income { 913)
Taxation 1,514
11,425
Operating prefit before charges in working capital:
Accounls receivable and prepayments { 2,662)
Due from related party { 6538
Accounts payable and accrnals 2,820
Subscriptions received in advance -
Cash from operations 10,925
Taxation paid { 3.669)
et cash provided by operating activities _7.256
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment { 7,237
Securities purchased under resale agreements, net 352
Inlerest received 815
Net cash used in investment aclivities {_6.0530)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Special project funds payable, being net cash used
by financing activities {9411
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents { 8,18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 20.851
CASH AND CASH CQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR {note §) 12,668
Compriscd of:
Special projects tund 4,462
Others 8.198
12,660

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

{ 643)
21,494

20,851

13,879
6972

20,851



THE PRIVATE SECTOR QRGANISATION OF JAMALICA

Notes to the Finangial Stateiments
December 31, 2014

i. Corporate information

The Private Scctor Organisation of Jamaica (“the Organisation™) is incorporated under the laws
of Jamaica, The Organisation is limited by guarantee and does not have share capital. The
liability of each member, in the event of a winding up, is limited 1o $2.

The principal activity of the Organisation is to promote, advocaie and encourage Lhe principics
of a competitive and productive private sector in Jamaica.

By order of the then relevant Minister of Production, Mining and Commerce, on the 9" December
1992, the Qrganisation was authorised under Section 20 of the Companies Act to omit the word
“Limited” from its name.

The registered office of the Organisation is located at 39 Hope Road, Kingston 10.

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance:

The financial statemenis are prepared in accordance with Inernational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) and their interpretations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican Companies Act.

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations of, and amendments, came
into effect for the current financial period. The organisation has assessed that those
standards and interpretations did not have a material impact on these financial statements.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued
which arc not yet ctfective at the reporting date and which the organisation has not carly-
adopted. Management has assessed the relevance of all such new standards, amendments
and interpretations with respect to the organisation’s operations and has determined that
the following are likely to have an effect:

o IFRS 9 Financial Imsrruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after Janwary [, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 1FRS 9@ includes revised
guidance on the classification and mcasurcment of financial assets and liabilities,
including a new expected credil loss madel for caleulating impairment of financial
assels and the new general hedge accounting requirements, It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecopnition of financial instruimeints from IAS 39,
Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets — amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVQCT) and fair value thoughe profit or
loss (FVTPL.) - are similar to [AS 39, the criteria for classitication into the appropriate
measurement catcgory arc significantly different. IFRS @ replaces the “incurred loss’
modcl in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss™ modcl, which mcans that a loss event
will nu longer need to occur before an impairment allowance is recognised,



THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Notes 1o the Financial Statements (Centinued)
December 31, 2014

2.

Statement of compliance, basiz of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d):

[FRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective for periods beginning
on or after Januvary |, 2017, It replaces 1AS 11 Construction Conitracts, TAS 18
Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, 1FRIC 15 Agreciments for the
Conslruction of Real Estate, [FRIC 18 Transfor of Assets from Customers and SIC-31
Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard
applies to contracts with customers. However, it does not apply to insurance contracts,
financial instruments or lease contracts, which fail in the scope of ather IFRSs. i also
does not apply if two companies in the same line of business exchange non-menetary
asscts to facilitale sales to other partics. Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is
partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the guidance on separation and measurement
contained in the other IFRS takes precedence.

IAS  Presemation of Financiol Starements, effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018, has been amended to clarify or stafe the following:

- specific single disclosures that are not material do not have to be presented even if
they arc a minimumn requirement of a standaid,

- the order of notes to the {inancial stalerments is not prescribed.

- line items on the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income (OCI) should be disaggregated 1f this provides
helpful information to users. Lines items can be aggregated if they are not material,

- specific criteria is now provided for presenting subtotals on the statement of
financial position and in the statement of profit or loss and QCI, with additional
rcconeiliation requircments for the statement of prolit or foss and OCL

- the presentation in the statement of OCI of items of OCI arising from joini ventures
and associates accounting for using the equity method follows IAS 1 approach of
spliiting items that may, or that will never, be reclassified to profit or loss.

Amendiments to IAS 16 and 1AS 38, Clarificaiion of Accepiable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation, are effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016.

« TUhe amendinent o LAS 16, Property. Plani and Equipment cxplicitly states thal
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannol be vsed. This is because such
methods reflect factors other than the consumption of economic benefits embodied
in the assets.

»  The amendment 10 LAS 38, hatangible Assels introduces a rebuitable presumption
that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods is inappropriate for intangible
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)

December 31, 2014

2.

Statement ol compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(2)

(b)

Statement of compliance (cont’d}:

o Improvements fo IFRS 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cyeles contain amendments to
ccrtain standards and inlerpretations and are effective for accounting periods beginning
or or after July 1, 2014. The main amendments applicable to the organisation are:

[FRS 13, Fair Value Measurement is amended to clarify that issuing of the
standard and consequential amendments to 1AS 39, and IFRS 9, did aot intend
to prevent entities from measuring short-lerm receivables and payables that have
no stated interest rate at thelr invoiced amounts without discounting, if the effect
of not discounting is immaterial.

IAS 24, Related Party Disclosires has been amended to extend the definition of
‘related party’ o include a management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, either directly or through a group
entity, For related party transactions that arise when key management personnel
services are provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to
separately disclose the amounts that 1t has recognised as an expensce for those
services that arc provided by a management entity; however, il is not required 1o
‘look through® the management entily and disclose compensation paid by rhe
management entity 1o the individuals providing the koy management personnel
services.

o Jmprovements to IFRS, 2001 2-2014 cycle, contain amendments 1o certain standards and
inlerpretations and are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after Janvary
1, 2016. The main amendments applicable to the organization are:

»

IFRS 7, Firancial Instrumenis: Disclosures, bas been amended (o clanfy when
servicing arrangemenis are in the scope of its disclosure requirements on
continuing involvement in transferred assets in cases when they are
derccognized in their entirety. A servicer is deemed to have continuving
mvarlvement if it has an interest in the future performance of the transferred asset
-¢.g. if the servicing lee is dependent on the ammount or tiing of the cash Mows
collected from the transferred financial asset; however, the collection and
remittance of cash flows from the transferred asset to the transferee is not, in
itself, sufficient to be considered ‘continuing invelvement’.

The organisation is assessing the impact that these standards and amendments may have
on its future financial statements.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements are presented in Jamaica dollars ($), which is the functional
currency of the Organisation. All financial information presented in Jamaica dollars has
been rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwisce indicated.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

The significant accounting policies stated in paragraphs (¢) to {{) below conform in all
material respecis with (FRS.



1HE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Notes w the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.

Statement of complianee, basis of preparation and significant accourting policics (cont’d)

(e

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements to conform to IFRS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of asscis and liabihties,
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date and the income and
expenses for the year then ended. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

‘The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting cstitnates are recognised in the period in which the cstimate is rovised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and fulure periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates wills a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next {inancial year are discussed below:

(i)  Allowance for impairment losses on receivables:

In determining amounts recorded for impairment of losses in the financial
statemenis, management makes judgemenis reparding indicators of impairment, that
is, whether (here are indicators that suggest there may be a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from receivables, for example, based on default and
adverse economic conditions. Management also makes estimates of the likely
estimated future cash flows from impaired receivables as well as the timing of such
cash flows. Historical loss cxperience is applied where indicators of impairment are
nol observable on individual significant receivables with similar characteristics, such
as credit rigks,

Property, plant and equipment:

{i)  Property, plant and cquipment are stated at historical cost or deemed cost, less
accumulaied depreciation and impairment losses, il any. Cost includes expenditures
that are directly atiributabie to the acquisition of the asset. The cast of replacing part
of an item of property, plani and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the organisation and its cost can be measurcd reliably. The costs of day-
to-day servicing of property, planl and equipment are recognised in profit or loss.

An item of properly and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
cconomic benelits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised.
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THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
December 31,2014

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant actounting policies {cont’d)

{d} Troperty, plant and equipment {cont’d):
(i1} Depreciation:
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write

down the property, plant and cquipment (o their estimated residual values at the end
of their expected uscful lives. Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 20%
Computer equipment 20%

Land is not depreciated
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually.

{e} Investments:

Available-for-sale:

Available-for-sale investments arc initially measurcd at cost and subsequently at fair value,
with unrealiscd gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised directly in fair
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses. Where fair values cannot be reliably
delermined, they are stated at cost.

When these investments are disposed of or impaired, ihe related unrealised gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss,

The fair value of available-for-sale investments is based on their quoted market bid price
at the reporiing datc. Where a quoted market price is nol available, fair value is estimated
using discounted cash flow techniques.

Available-for-sale investments are recognised or derecognised by the organisation on the
date they commit to purchase or sell the investments.

{(f)  Sccuritics purchased under resale agreements:

Securitics purchased under resale agreements {“reverse repos™) are short-tenm transactions
whereby an entity buys securities and simultaneous!y agrees to resell the securities on a
specified date and at a specified price. Titie to the security is not actually transtorred unless
the counterparty fails to comply with the ferms of the coniract,

Reverse repos are accounted for as short-term collateralised lending, classified as loans and
receivables and measured al amorlised cost. The difference between the sale and
rcpurchase considerations is recognised on an accrual basis over the period of the
transaction and is included in interest income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2014

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significanl accounting policics {cont’d)

()

(i)

G}

Employee benefits:

The Organisation has a defined contribution pension scheme for all permanent emplovees,
which is managed by an outside agency. The Orgarisation’s liability is limited to its
contributions which are aceounted for on the accrual basis and charged to profit or loss in
the period to which they reiate.

Accounts reccivable:
Trade and ather receivables are stated at amortised cost, less impairment losses.
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprisc cash at bank and in hand and short-teym investments
held with Hinancial institutions with maturity dates of less than three months.,

Related parties:

A relaled party 1s a4 person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial
statements (referred to in TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity™).

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if
that person:

{i} has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
{it} has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

{iii} is a member of the key management personnef of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity,

(b} An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i} The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group {wliich meang
that cach parent, subsidiary and [cllow subsidiary is rclated to the others),

(ii) Onc entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

{iliy Both entities are joint venturcs of the same third party.

{iv) One catity is a joint venture of a third cntity and the other entity i3 an associate
of the third enlity.

(v} The entily is a post-employment benelit plan {or the benefit of employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. 1f the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the reporting entity.
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THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Notes to the Financial Statcments (Continued)
December 31, 2014

2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

)

(k)

1)

{m})

{n)

Related partics (cont'd):

(b} An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies
{cont’d):

{vi) The cntity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vii} A person identilicd in (a)(i} has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the
cntily).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whelher a price is charged.

Accounts payable:
Trade and other payvables are stated at amortised cost.
Provisions:

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the organisation has
a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economie benefits will be required to settle the obligation. IF the effect is
material, provisions arc determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rale (hat reflects current market assessments of the time value of inoney and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation.

Special project funds:

Funds designated for special projects are credited to a Special Project Funds account.
Approved project expenses are charged against these funds.

Impairment:

The carrying amounts of the organisation’s asseis are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether thers is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists, the
assct’s recoverable amount is estimated at cach reporting date. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset cxceeds ifs recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

(1)  Calculation of recoverable amount:
The recoverable amount of the organisation’s receivables is calculated as the present

value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the original cffcctive interest rale
inherent in the asset, Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2,

Swatemeni of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

()

(o)

(p)

{q)

Impairment {cont’d):
(i) Calculation of recoverable amount {cont’d):

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimawed Miture cash {lows are discounied
Lo their present value wsing a pre-tax discount rate that rellects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(ii} Reversals of impairment;
An lmpairment loss in respect of receivables is reversed if the subsequent increase
in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the

impairment loss was recognised.

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asseis” carrving amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deteirmined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, 1f no impairment foss had been recognised.

Revenue:

Revenue is recognised to the exicnt that # is probable that the economic benefits will flow
o the Organisation and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Tinance income:

Net finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, material bank charges
and foreign exchanpe gains and losses recognised i profit or loss,

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as il accrues, taking into account the yield on
the asset.

{ncome tax:

Taxation on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
to equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years,



THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISA TION OF JAMAICA

Notes (o the Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2014

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(9)

()

w

Income tax (cont’d):

Deferred tax is provided for temmporary differences between the canmying amounts of assets
and ltabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected mauner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assels and labilities, using lax rates enacted at the
reporting date.

A deforred tax assct is recognised only Lo the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that the related tax benefitwill be realised.

Foreign currencics:

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monctary asscts and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies,
which are staled at historical cost, are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising from flucruations in exchange rates
arc recogniscd in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, all foreign currency paing and losses
recoguised 1 profit or loss are treated as cash items and included in cash flows [rom
operaling or {inancing aclivities along with movements in the principal balances.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one
enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. For the
purpose of these financial stalements, financial assets have been determined 1o include
accounts receivable, special project funds receivable, due from related party, securities
purchased under resale agreements, cash and cash cquivalents.  Similarly, financial
liabilities include special project funds, accounts pavable and subscriptions received in
advance.

Determination of fair value:

Fair value amounts represent estimates of the arm’s length consideration that would be
currently agreed between knowiedgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to
act and is best evidenced by a quoted market price, il one exists, Some [inancial instruments
lack an avarlable trading market. These instruments have been valued using present value
or other valuation techniques and the fair value shown may not necessariiy be indicative of
the amounts realisable in an immediate scitlement of the instrumenlts.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Cost:
December 31, 2012
Additions
Disposals

December 31, 2013
Additions
Disposals

December 31, 2014
Accumulaled depreciation:
December 31, 2012

Charge [or the year
Eliminated on disposals

December 31, 2013
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

December 31, 2014

Net book value;
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

4, Invesiments

Investments consist of the following:

Available-for-sale:

Land and Leasehold
Building Improvements
$°000 £ 000
1,449 5,034
1,449 5,034
1.44 5.034

18 1,079
26 125
44 1,204
27 126
71 1.330
1378 3704
1,485 3.830

Queted stocks - Ciboney Group Limited

Furmiture and
equipment

$To00

19,772
876
(__504)

20,144
7,237
{_ 241)

27,140

LR
o =
—
o 1R

16

Total
$'000

26,255
876
(__304)

26,627
7.237
(__241)

33,623

15,871
1,494
{_ 386)

17,059
1,726
{__241)

18.544

L,079
9568

2013

00

=
L]
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Notes to the Financial Staiemenis (Continued)
i2ecember 31, 2014

5. Accounts receivable and prepayments

2014 2013
S0 000
Trade receivables 6,599 2,852
Prepayments 127 1,031
Other recetvables __493 634
7,219 4,537
Less: provision for lrmpairment 217 {_297)
7002 4,240
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting dale was:
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2014 2014 2013 2013
$000 5000 $1000 $7000
Neither past due nor impaired - - 15 -
Past due 1 - 30 days 2,109 - 719 -
Past due 31 - 60 days 3,343 - 447 -
Past due 61 - 90 days 930 - 1,178 -
More than 90 days 217 217 493 297
6,599 217 2,852 297
The movement in the provision for impairment ol receivables was us follows:
2014 2013
£°000 600
Balance at beginning of year 297 202
[impairment loss recogniscd - 95
Aanounts written-olT ({23 .
Amounts recovered { 57) -
Balance at end of year 217 297

Related party balances and transactions

{a} The statement of financial position inciudes balances,

business, wills related partics as follows:

Duc from related parties:
Jamaica Bankcrs Association
Jamaica Scouritics Dealers Assocition

2014
S 000

BB

arising in the ordinary course of
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Notes to the Financial Statemcuts {Conlinued)
December 31, 2014

6. Related party balances and transactions {cont"d)

(a) The statement of Mnancial position ncludes balances, arising in the ordinary course of
business, with related companies as follows (cont™d):

The amount due irom related parties are unsecured, do not attract interest and are not
subject to any fixed repayment terms. The balances are expected to be settied within twelve
months of the reporting date.

{by The profit for the year includes the following expenses incurred/{revenue earned) in
transaclions with related parties.

2014 2013
#0600 $ 000
Key management compensalion 9,678 8,661

The Organisation is reimbursed lor administrative expenses incurred in managing the
operations of The Jamaica Bankers Association and Jamaica Securities Dealers
Association.

7. Securities purchased under resale agreements

The [air value of the underlving securities approximate to cost and amounts to $15,462,568
(2013: $15,855,388).

8 Cash and cash cquivalents
2014 2013
$7 000 $7000
Special project funds 4,462 13,879
Gther 8,198 6,972
12,660 20,851
9 Deferred taxation

The net deferred tax iability is attributable to the following:

January  Recognised  December  Recognised December

I, in profit a1, in profit i,
2013 ot loss 2013 or loss 2014
$7000 § 000 $T000 000 £000
Unrealised foreign exchange
zain { 186) 186 - - -
Accounts receivable { 44 23 {20 { 4 ( 25)
Property, plant & equipment {1,687 787 {900) (210} (LI
Tax losses 3,094 (2.938) 156 {156} -
L177 (L.242) (Z65) (310) (1133)
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Decomber 31,2014
10.  Special project funds

Special project funds payabie consist of the following:

2014 2013

S'000 $*000
PSOJ YUTE Project {a) - 2,794
The FEuropcan Union Banana Support Programme {b) 1,965 2,453
IDBMNCB Small Business Project (c) 618 8,632
National Business Model Competition {d) 151 -
Truc Matalon Biography (c) 1,658 -
True Vision Fund H 70 -

4462 13,879

(a}

(b)

Youth Upliftment Through Employment (YUTE) is an aggressive 2% vear projest being
implemented through a privale sector-led coalition. The project focuses on building
technical and social skills, increasing employability, and providing long and short term
cconomic and enireprencurship opportunities for 2,200 “at risk youtk’. The Organisation
provides administralive support in planning, accounting and marketing. The balance on
the account was transferved to another company that now manages the project.

On September 20, 2011, the PSOJ signed an agreement with the Office of the European
Union Banana Support Programme for a project titled: St. James Youth Training ond Joé
Placement Project. The objective ol the project is to train and certify 200 persons between
the ages of 18 to 30 ycars old from rural communities in South St. James in ICT skills 1o
work with call centre operations; specilically with Global Gateway Selutions in Montego
Bay. The approved budget is €498,794 of which 60.15% is financed by the EU: 36.7%
financed by the Goverament of Jamaica through the Constituency Development Fund
(CDF); and 9.15% by Giobal Gateway Solutions. The project was for a period of 135
months and should have been completed in December 2012, Given the delays in starting
the project, the European Union approved an exiension of the project closure to March 18,
2013 to enable the achievement of the project’s objectives. The project has not been
officially signed off by the European Union as they are in the process of completing their
audit of the project. When this is completed, monies remaining will be returned and the
hank accounts ¢losed.

On November 16, 2012, the National Commercial Bank Iamaica Limited {(INCB}) and the
Inter-Amenican Development Bank signed a non-reimbursable technical cooperation
agreement in the amownt of US§462,060 to finance the contracting of consuiting services
and the procurement of goods and services [or the execution of a project called
“Institutional Strengthening of NCB for the Expansion of Small Business Financing”™. The
project seeks to increase financing and financial services to small and medivin enterprises
(SMEs}) - the companies that drive economic growth in Jamaica. The purpose is
strengthen the capacity of the NCB Group to sigaificantly increase lending and financial
services to small enterprises. The PSCJ is the legal agency executing this Project. The
period for execution of the Project is thidly (30} months.
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10.  Special project funds {cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e}

1

(Cont’d)

The project consists of the fellowing components:

(i} Development and deployment of a Credit Scoring System;
(ii}  Capacity building of SMEs, including Family Businesses;
(iiiy  Technical Assistance for Selected SME clients; and

(iv)  Communication and Knowledge Management.

The Project has a iotal budget of US$1,029.009. The Multilateral Investment Fund’s
contribution is US$462.000 and counterpart resources in the amount of US$567 009 will
be provided by NCB, ol which US$303,880 will be in cash and US8%63,129 in-kind
resourecs,

As at the end of December 2014, of the total lunds available of US$1,029,089, a total of
US$654,108 has been disbursed by IDB and NCB and approximalely US$652,168 was
spent veprescuting $63.37% of total project cost.

On January 2014, the University of Technology Jamaica, (UTECH), through the Joan
Duncan School of Entrepreneurship, Cthics and Leadership (JDSEEL), the University of
the West Indies Mona School of Business and Management {MSBM and Worthem
Caribbean University (NCU), embarked upon a noble projcct to promote catrepreneurship
through a National Business Model Competition (NBMC). The winner of the competition
will be entered 1n the International Business Model Competition {(IBMC) in Utah, USA.

The Mayor Matalon Biography Fund represents funds from PSOJ member companies
donated towards doing a biography in remembrance of the late Mayor Matalon,

The True Vision Fund represents Funds ltom member companies of PSOJ for a television
program focusing on the International Monetary Fund programme in Jamaica. The program
15 scheduled to be aired in 20135,
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11.  Accounts pavable and acerualg

Trade payables (1)
Accruals

(i)

11,184

21

2013
$ro00

4,692
3.672

8,364

Included n wade payables is an amount of §1,229,000 (2013: $1,729,000) representing

unspent balances in respect of [unds received from Development Bank of Jamaica to finance

corpoTate governance tatming,

12, Finance income

Finance mcome;
interest income
Toreign exchange gains

13, Profit before taxalion

2,289

{a) The following items have been charged in arriving at the profit’{loss) before taxation:

Depreciation
Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs (note 14)

14, Staff costs

Staff costs comprise the lollowing:

Wages, salaries and statutory deductions
Pension costs
QOther staff costs

201

$:000

N

1,726
7940
27.525

2014
000

23,745
504
2,876

27,325

201
3000

LFS)

1,494
780
2,16
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i5.

Pension scheine

22

The Organisation operates a delined contribution pension scheme for all employees who have
satisfied certain minimum service requirernents. The scheme is administered by Guardian L.ife
Limited. During the year the Organisation’s contribution totalled $904,000 (2013: $1,158,000),

Taxation

{a}

(b}

{)

Taxation is based ou the profit for the year adjusled for tax purposes and comprises:

2014

5000

Income tax 1,671

Employee tax credit { 527
Deferred taxation

Origination and reversal of temporary
differences, net (note 3) 370
Lsl4

The actual charge differs from the expected charge for the yoar as follows:

2014
3040
Reconciliation of tax charge:
Profit hefore taxation 10,614
Computed "expected” tax cxpense @ 25% (2013: 25%) 2,654
Difference between profiti{loss} for financial
effect of adjusiments on:
Disallowed expenses, net { 438)
Tax losses utilised { 135
Ewmiplovee tax credit {527}
Actual taxation expense 1,514

2013
3000

( 674)
( 1,144

1,942

Subject to the agreement of the Commissioner, Taxpayer Audit & Assessment Department,

tax losses available for offset against fisture profits is Nil (2013: $623,361),
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16. Taxation {cont’d)

(d)

The Government of Jamaica has implemented new tax measures to change the current tax
incentives regime, effective January 1, 2014, The Organisalion is an unregulated entity and
the major applicable changes arc scl ouk bolaw:

¢ Tax losscs may still be carried forward indefinitcly, however, the amount that ean be
utilised is restrcted to 50% of chargeable income (before prior year losses) in any one
year;

» Tax compliant entitics will be able to claim up 10 30% of employer’s and cmployees’
statutory contributions (Emplovment Tax Credit) against income tax for the year.
Unused Employment Tax credit cannot be carried forward or refunded;

* The maximum capital allowances on private motor vehicles, which were previously
limited to J$3,200, will increase to a maximum of US$33,000; and

+ No initial allowances will be given on the purchase of buildings; however, all other
capital expenditure on buildings and other assets will continue to attract inilial
allowances.

17, Financial instruments

(a)

Financial nsk management:
The Organisation has exposore 10 the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

. Liguidity risk

. Market risk

. Operational risk

The Board of Directors, together with senior management has overall responsibility for the
cstablishment and oversight of the Organisation’s risk management framework.

The Qrganisation’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Organisation to set appropriate risk limiis and conirols, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Organisation’s activities.

. Credit risk:

Credit risk 15 the risk that a party to a financial instcument will Tail 10 discharge an
obligation and cause the other party 1o incur a financial loss. The Organisation has
no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Organisation, however, faces credit
risk In respect of its reccivables and managcs this risk by pericdic reviews of
receivable balances and by making provisions for impairment losses, where
necessary.

At the reporting date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk and the

maximum exposure to crodit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset,
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7. TFinancial instruments {cont’d}

{a)  Financial risk management {cont’d):
. Liguidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk thal an cntity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Prudent liquidity risk
management implics maintaining sufficient cash and short-term investments and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic natwre of the underlying business, the management of the
Organisation aims at maintaining sufficient liquidity by efficient cash management.

The contractual cutflows as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, for accounts payabic
and subscriptions received in advance are represented by their carrying amounts in
the statcinenl of financial position and require settlement within 12 months of the
reporting date,

. Market risk:

Market risk is the risk thai changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
and interest rates will affect the Organisation’s income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

(i)  Tnterest rate risk:

Interest rale risk 1s the risk that the value of a financial instrument will (luctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

The Organisation had ne signiticant inferest rate risk at the reporting date.
Short-term funds are invested {or periods of three months or less at fixed
interest rales and are not affected by fluctuations in market rates up to the date
of maturity.

(i} Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fTuciuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Organisation is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions {hat are
denominated in & cuwrrency other than the Jamaica dollar. The main currency
giving rise to this risk is the United States dollar,

At the reporting dale, the Organisaiion had net foreign currency asscts
amounting to USS182,669 (2013: UU5$94,553).
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17, Financial inslrwnents {cont’d)
{a} Financial risk management {(cont’d):
. Market risk (cont’d):
(i)  TForeign currency risk (cont'd):

Exchange rates, in terms of Jamaica doilars, were as follows:

Us
At May 1, 2015: 115.21
At December 31, 2014 114,11
Al December 31, 2013: 105.72

A 10% (2013: 159%) strengthening of the IUS$ against the Jamaica dollar would
have increased profit or for the year by $2,086,680 (2013: £1,449,365). This
analysis assumnes that all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain
constant.

A 1% (2013: 1%y weakening of the 1JS8 against the Jamaica dallar would have
decreased profit or for the year by $208,608 (2013: $99,958). This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,

. Cperational risk:

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a vartely of causcs
associated with the Organisation's processes, personncl, technology and cxternal
factors, other than linancial risks, such as generally accepted standards of corporate
behaviour. The Organisation manages operational risk so as to avoid financial loss
and damage to ils repulation.

{by  Fair vaiue of financial instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market pairticipants at the measurement date. Where
quoted market prices are not available, the fair valuss of these instruments have been
determined using a generally accepted alternative method.

The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of cach ¢lass
of financial instrument for which it is prachcable to estimate that value.

Financial instimiment Method

Cash  and  cash  equivalents, securities  Assumed (o approximate their carrying
purchased under resale agreements, accounts  values, due to their short-term nature,
reccivable, accounts payable and  special

project funds.
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18. Capital manapement:
The Organisation’s ohjectives when managing capital are:

(1)  to safeguard the Organisation’s abilily to continue as a going concern; and
(if)  to maintain a strong capilal basc in order to carry oul its mandate,

Capital adequacy is monitored by the Organisation’s management on a regular basis. The
Organisation’s overali strategy remained unchanged (or 20114,

The capital structure of the entity consists of retained earnings.
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Other income
Pecember 31,2014

National Busincss Model Competition administration fees

Economic bulletin

European Union banana support programme
administration fecs

Luncheons

NCB project coordination

Other

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Publications

Rental

Seminars

Sponsored breakfasts



THE PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANISATION OF JAMAICA

Administration cxpenses
December 31, 2014

50 under 30 business leaders
Adverlising
Auditors’ remuncration

Bad debts (recovered)fexpensed

Bank charges

Caricom ¢xport workshop
Depreciation

Donations and subscriptions
General cxpenses
Insurance

Legal fees

Muetings ard luncheons
Miscellancous expenses
Penalties and interest
Professional services
Property tax

Publications

Repairs and maintenance
Security expenses
Seminars

Sponsored bieakfasts
Stalf cosis

Stationcry

Travelling and entertainment
IDB/NCEB Conference
Omnibus Leg. Study
Utilities

2014
$7000

556
790
¢ 57
164

1,726
279
2,148
499
791
5,035

-
A

38
3,752
195
896
2,205
1,043
1,516
1,888
27,525
426
38

s
213
790

95
222
6

1,494
751

2,239
494

4,627
1113
44
4.507
164
1,200
2,595
1,370
954
2,527
22,162
733
78
2,105
2,779
_4.606

57,883
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PSOJ MEMBERS

- AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 .

COMPANY NAMES

ACCESS FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.
ADVANCED DIGITAL SERVICES

ADVANCED INTEGRATED SYSTEMS LTD.
ADVANTAGE GENERAL

AEGEAN BUNKERING JAMAICA LIMITED
ALLIANCE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD.
ALTERNATIVE POWER SOURCES LTD.
ANBELL GROUP

ANSWERS CORPORATION LTD.

APPLIANCE TRADERS GROUP OF COMPANIES
ARC SYSTEMS LTD.

ASSURANCE BROKERS JAMAICA LTD.
ATLAS PROTECTION JAMAICA LTD.

AULOUS F. MADDEN & CO.

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA JAMAICA LTD. (THE)
BARNETT LIMITED

BCW CAPITAL

BERRY-DON FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.
BILLY CRAIG INSURANCE BROKERS LTD.
BPM FINANCIAL LTD.

BRANCH DEVELOPMENTS LTD.

BRYAN STUDIOS LTD.

BUSINESS RECOVERY SERVICES

CAC 2000 LTD.

CALEDONIA OUTDOOR ADVERTISING CO. LTD.

CARIBBEAN AEROSPACE COLLEGE
CARIBBEAN CEMENT COMPANY LTD.
CARIBBEAN PRODUCERS (JAMAICA) LIMITED
CAMCORP INDUSTRY LTD.

CARI-MED LIMITED

CARRERAS LTD.

CEMEX JAMAICA LTD.

CENTRAL FOOD PACKERS

CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LTD (THE)
CENTRALIZED STRATEGIC SERVICES LTD.
CENTURY 21 HEAVE-HO PROPERTIES LTD.
CGR COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

CHOICE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LIMITED
CHUKKA CARIBBEAN ADVENTURES LTD.
CIBC FIRSTCARIBBEAN INT’L BANK JA. LTD.
CITl

COLUMBUS COMMUNICATIONS JAMAICA LIMITED (FLOW)
CONTINENTAL BAKING COMPANY LTD.

COST CLUB LTD. (MEGAMART)

COURTS (JAMAICA) LTD.

CREDITINFO JAMAICA LIMITED

CRIF NM CREDIT ASSURE LTD.

D. C. TAVARES & FINSON CO. LTD.

DAIRY INDUSTRIES JAMAICA LTD.

DGS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVISORS
DHL EXPRESS LTD.

DIGICEL (JAMAICA) LTD.

DOT PERSONNEL SERVICES JA. LTD.

DPM INTERNATIONAL LTD.

DUNLOP CORBIN COMMUNICATIONS
DYNAMIC PACKAGING PRODUCTS LTD.

E.W ABRAHAMS AND SON CO. LTD.

ECKLER

B Ursas——
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EFFICIENT DELIVERY SOLUTIONS
EMEDIA INTERACTIVE LTD.
ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS LTD.
ERNST & YOUNG

FACEY LAW

FERRIS ZIADIE LTD.

FIDELITY MOTORS LTD.

FOSRICH GROUP OF COMPANIES
FRASER FONTAINE & KONG LTD.
FUTURE SERVICES INTERNATIONAL LTD.
GAS PRODUCTS LTD.

GB ENERGY

GEDDES REFRIGERATION LTD.
GLAXOSMITHKLINE CARIBBEAN LTD.
GORE DEVELOPMENTS LTD.
GRACEKENNEDY LTD.

GREEN SUN ENERGY PLUS LTD.
GREY’S PEPPER PRODUCTS
GTECH FOREIGN HOLDINGS JA.
GUARDIAN LIFE LTD.

GUARDSMAN GROUP LTD.

HALL WILSON & ASSOCIATES
HART MUIRHEAD FATTA

HENLIN GIBSON HENLIN

HENLON BROWN CAPITAL
HERALD PRINTERS LTD. (THE)
HOLISTIC RISK SOLUTIONS LTD.
HOUSE OF ISSA

IBM WORLD TRADE CORPORATION
ICD GROUP

MASSY TECHNOLOGIES INFOCOM JA. LTD. (ILLUMINAT LTD.)
INDIES PHARMA JAMAICA LTD.
INFOSERV

INFO EXCHANGE LIMITED
INGENUITY TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

INOVA SOLUTIONS JAMAICA LTD.

INSURANCE COMPANY OF THE WEST INDIES
INTCOMEX JAMAICA LTD.

INTERNATIONAL ASSET SERVICES LTD.
INTERNATIONAL CREDIT MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LTD.
INTERACTIVE TOUCAN JAMAICA LIMITED

IPRINT DIGITAL LTD.

J. WRAY AND NEPHEW LTD.

JAMAICA BROILERS GROUP LTD.

JAMAICA CENTRAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED
JAMAICA COLLECTION & RECOVERY SERVICES LTD.
JAMAICA COSMETIC DENTAL SERVICES

JAMAICA ENERGY PARTNERS

JAMAICA MONEY MARKET BROKERS LTD.
JAMAICA NATIONAL BUILDING SOCIETY

JAMAICA OBSERVER LTD. (THE)

JAMAICA PEGASUS HOTEL

JAMAICA PRE-MIX LTD.

JAMAICA PRODUCERS GROUP LTD.

JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LTD.
JAMALCO

JMMB MERCHANT BANK

JN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

K. CHANDIRAM LTD.

KEY INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

KINGSTON LIVE ENTERTAINMENT (KLE) GROUP LTD.
KINGSTON PROPERTIES LTD.

KINGSTON WHARVES LTD.

KONNEXX SERVICES LTD.

KPMG

KRIS AN CHARLES INVESTMENTS CO. LTD.

LA MAISON PROPERTY SERVICES

LARIBO MARKETING AND CONSULTANTS LTD.
LASCO DISTRIBUTORS LTD.

LAWE INSURANCE BROKERS LTD.

B e s



LEECORP LIMITED

LEX CARIBBEAN LTD.

LIFESPAN COMPANY LTD.

LIME JAMAICA

LIVINGSTON ALEXANDER & LEVY
MANAGEMENT CONTROL SYSTEMS LTD.
MASSY DISTRIBUTION (JA.) LIMITED
MAYBERRY INVESTMENTS LTD.

MF & G TRUST & FINANCE LTD.
MICROSOFT JAMAICA INC.

MINOTT EQUIPMENT & CHEMICALS LTD.
MONA GEOINFORMATICS INSTITUTE
MONA SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT
MOORE’S TRANSPORT SERVICES
MUSSON (JAMAICA) LTD.

MWC ASSOCIATES

NATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK LTD.
NESTLE JMP JAMAICA LTD.

NEW WORLD REALTORS

NEWPORT FERSAN (JAMAICA) LTD.
NEXUS HOSPITALITY

NUNES, SCHOLEFIELD, DELEON & O. LTD.
PAN-JAMAICAN INVESTMENT TRUST LTD.
PANMEDIA LTD.

PAYMASTER JAMAICA LTD.

PEAK BOTTLING COMPANY LTD.

PHASE THREE PRODUCTIONS LTD.
POINT GLOBAL MARKETING LTD.
PREMIER SECURITY COMPANY
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

PRIME ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD.
PRISM COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

PRO COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

PROVEN WEALTH LTD.

RADIO JAMAICA LTD. (RJR)

EED;
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RATTRAY PATTERSON RATTRAY
RAVERS LTD.

RED STRIPE

RESTAURANTS OF JAMAICA LTD.
SAGICOR GROUP JAMAICA LIMITED
SARIFA INSURANCE BROKERS LTD.
SEPROD GROUP OF COMPANIES

SIGN CRAFT LTD.

SINGER JAMAICA LTD.

SHIELDS CRIME & SECURITY CONSULTANTS LTD.
SMS COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

SOFOS JAMAICA LIMITED

SOLEASE LIMITED

SOL PETROLEUM JAMAICA LIMITED
SPACES LTD.

SPANISH COURT HOTEL

STERLING ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD.
STEWART’S AUTO SALES LIMITED
STRAWBERRY HILL HOTEL AND SPA
STREAMLINE SOLUTIONS JAMAICA LTD.
STRONGHOLD DATA SOLUTIONS (JAMAICA) LTD.
SUNSHINE AUTO PARTS LTD.
SUPERCLEANERS DRYCLEANERS & LAUNDERERS
SUPERIOR PARTS LTD.

SUPREME VENTURES LTD.

SURE LOYALTY SOLUTIONS

SYNCON TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

TARA COURIER SERVICES LIMITED

THE BUSINESS LAB

THE GLEANER COMPANY (MEDIA) LTD.
TOTAL JAMAICA LTD.

TRAFALGAR TRAVEL LTD.

UNITED PETROLEUM (JA.) LTD.

UNIQUE MEDIA DESIGNS

. B
¥

B s
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UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF THE CARIBBEAN
VANTAGEPOINT IT TRAINING AND CONSULTING
VICTORIA MUTUAL BUILDING SOCIETY
WINCHESTER SURGICAL & MEDICAL INSTITUTE

ASSOCIATIONS

BUSINESS PROCESSES INDUSTRY ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA
COUNCIL FOR VOLUNTARY SOCIAL SERVICES

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA
INCORPORATED MASTERBUILDERS’ ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA
INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF JAMAICA
INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS

INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

JAMAICA BANKERS ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LEAGUE

JAMAICA CUSTOMER SERVICE ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA DEVELOPERS ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA EMPLOYERS FEDERATION

JAMAICA EXPORTERS’ ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA HOTEL AND TOURIST ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA INSURANCE BROKERS ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES ALLIANCE (JITSA)

INDIVIDUALS

KIRKLAND ANDERSON
ROY BANARSEE

DAVID BARRETT

ELON BECKFORD
GRETA BOGUES
CHRISTOPHER BOVELL
NIGEL CLARKE

OLIVER CLARKE, 0J
JACQUELINE COKE-LLOYD
LLOYD EUBANK-GREEN
MERVYN EYRE
MICHAEL FENNELL

WISYNCO GROUP LIMITED
WORLDWIDE NOVELTIES LTD.

JAMAICA LIVESTOCK ASSOCIATION

JAMAICA SECURITIES DEALERS ASSOCIATION
JAMAICA USED CAR DEALERS ASSOCIATION
MEDICAL ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

MSME ALLIANCE (THE)

REALTORS ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

SHIPPING ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

SMALL BUSINESS ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA
SPIRITS POOL ASSOCIATION LTD.

SUGAR MANUFACTURING CORPORATION OF JAMAICA
WOMEN BUSINESS OWNERS (JAMAICA) LTD.

YOUNG ENTREPRENEURS ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA

JUDITH GREEN
PHILLIP HENRIQUES
SUSHIL JAIN

JUDITH JAMES
NEVILLE JAMES
EARL JARRETT
ALASTAIR MACBEATH
COLIN MCBEAN
MARK MCCONNELL
PETER MCCONNELL
MARIAME MCINTOSH ROBINSON
FREDRIK MOE

B e s



HENLEY W. MORGAN
ERROL POWELL
CHRISTOPHER RECKORD
LYNDEN G. ROSE
CHARLES ROSS
SANDRA SHIRLEY
COLIN STEELE
LAWRENCE STEWART
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FAITH STEWART

DAVID SUMMERBELL JNR.
MAUREEN WEBBER

KARIN WILSON-EDMONDS
CHARMAINE WRIGHT
JEMELIA WOOLERY-DAVIS
CHRISTOPHER ZACCA
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WHY ARE THEY
SMILING?

T

H

=

BECAUSE THEIR STERLING INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
ARE CONSISTENTLY GENERATING HIGHER RETURNS.

You, too, can be that happy. For over a decade, Sterling has been making
its clients happy by giving them returns on U.S. investments that make them smile.

Because Sterling has products that consistently generate exceptional returns.
Investments you can trust.

STERLRE

ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD

} h 3rd Floor, 40 Knutsford Boulevard

Kingston 5, Jamaica W.I.

Tel: (876) 754-2225-7 Fax: (876) 754-8103
website:www.sterling.com.jm
email:info@sterlingasset.net.jm
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